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i INTRODUCTION! ABOUT THE COMPANY

1.1 Introduction

In accordance with Croatian law, VIRO Sugar Factory is obliged to prepare and submit an Annual
Business Report, intended for the Company management and other interested parties.

Annual Business Report presents a complex and documented insight into Company's operations, with all
statistical methods, necessary material and financial data, as well as business indicators, calculated on bases of
modern analytical and statistical methods and valid international financial reporting standards.

This Report, together with basic financial reports (Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Cash flows
Statement) and Notes to the Financial Statements, make an integral report.

Data relevant for the preparation of this report, were collected from the Company's departments of
production, raw material supply, sales, finance, accounting and department of planning and analysis, where the
report is actually prepared, as well as the data supplied by company VIRO KOOPERACIJA d.o.0.

1.2 _About the Company

On June 27, 2002, based on the Article 7 of the Purchase contract, companies ECS-Z d.o.o.,
Zagreb and Robi¢ d.o.0. Velika Gorica, purchased the company Tvornica Secera Virovitica in bankruptey, its
immovable, stocks of raw materials, spare parts and production in course, and engaged themselves to found a
new company, invest all the purchased assets and continue the main activity of the factory in bankruptcy.

So, on July 19, 2002 a new company was founded, VIRO limited liability company, for production and
trade (further on VIRO Lid.), registered at the Register of Business Entities at the Commercial Court Bjelovar,
with subscribed core capital of HRK 20.000,00 and founders EOS-Z Lid. with 51% stake and Robi¢ Lid. with
49% stake.

After settlement of the total purchase price with the sellers of the bankrupted company assets, on
September 5, 2002, companies EOS-Z Ltd. and Robi¢ Lid. transferred to VIRO Ltd. the stocks of raw material,
spare parts and semi-final products, what was actually the real start of business activity for the new company.
On September 10, 2002, new employment contracts were signed with 264 full time employees.

During 2003 transfer of long-term fixed assets from EOS-Z Lid. and Robi¢ Lid. to VIRO Ltd. took
place. During the same period the new company was additionally capitalised, and the core capital was
increased to HRK 104.000.000,00.

By decision of the Assembly of July 21, 2005, and after registration at the Register of Business
Entities at the Commercial Court Bjelovar of September 1, 2005, company was fransformed from fimited liability
to joint stock company, and the name was changed to VIRO SUGAR FACTORY, joint stock company for
production and trade (abbr.: VIRO SUGAR FACTORY), and subscribed capital of HRK 104.000.000,00 was
substituted with 1.040.000 A-shares, made out in the name, at HRK 100,00 par value each.

During first quarter of 20086, the increase of the company core capital was completed, by money
investments and distribution of A-shares to the public, through Zagreb stock market system: 346.667 new A-
shares were issued, made out in the name, at HRK 100,00 par value each, in the total par value of HRK
34.666.700,00. Shares were sold at HRK 365,00 each, and fully subscribed and paid for. In such a way
company collected HRK 126.533.455,00 in total. On March 17, 2006 the increase of the core capital was
registered at the Commercial Court Bjelovar in the amount of HRK 34.666.700,00, so the total core capital
reached HRK 138.666.700,00.

Once the process of capitalisation was successfully completed, on April 20, 2006 company stocks
were officially listed on the Zagreb stock market.

By decision of the General Assembly of August 30, 2006, all 1.386.667 shares at par value of HRK
100,00 each, were substituted by shares without par value, in such a way company core capital was divided to
1.386.667 A-shares made out in the name, without par value.

By decision of the General Assembly of December 14, 2008, further increase of core capital was
made, by transformation of a part of the capital gain, and a part of the retention profit, in the amount of HRK
110.933.360,00, so the total core capital reached HRK 249.600.060,00. The core capital increase was carried
out without issuance of new shares, so the core capital is divided to 1.386.667 shares made out in the name,
without par value.



1.3 _Management Bodies

Effective July 19, 2002 when the Company was founded, Marinko Zadre and DraZen Robic were
appointed to the Management Board.

By decision of the Company members of May 23, 2003
a) Appointed to Supervisory Board

1. Marinko Zadro, Chairman
2. Zeljko Zadro, Deputy Chairman
3. Drazen Robic, Member of the Board

b) Appointed to Management Board

1. Damir Bari¢, President of the Board
2. lvan Duvnjak, Member of the Board
3. lvan Tot, Member of the Board

By decision of Company members of June 17, 2005, appointed to Supervisory Board

1. Marinko Zadro, Chairman

2. Boris Simunovi¢, Deputy Chairman

3. Drazen Robic, Member of the Board

4. Danaja Debicki, Member cf the Board

5. Kresimir Mostovac, Member of the Board

By decision of the General Assembly of August 30, 2007, instead of Danaja Debicki, Marinko Papuga
was appointed to the Supervisory Board,

By decision of the Supervisory Board of March 19, 2008, instead of three Members of the Management
Bord, Zeljko Zadro, former authorised representative, was appointed as the sole Member of the Management Board,
as from March 27, 2008.

By decision of the General Assembly of April 12, 2011, instead of Marinko Papuga, lvan Miseti¢ was
appointed to the Supervisory Board.

By decision of the Supervisory Board of December 12, 2011 Member of the Management Board Zeljko
Zadro was appointed as the President of the Management Bord and lvan Skori¢ was appointed as the Member of
the Management Board.
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i RAW MATERIAL PROCUREMENT ANALYSES

By the ptan of sugar beet production for 2012, foreseen sow area was 24.710 acres.

Contracting of production started in September 2011. Necessary fertilizers, seeds and plant protection
chemicals were provided on time and in sufficient quantities.

Contracted area was 27.020 acres, and 26.720 acres were sown.

Sowing started in Belje on March 12, and in Anabela, Agronom, Fermopromet and Baranjsko Petrovo
sefo on March 15.

Till the end of March, 97,7% of the area was sown, and the reminder 620 acres (2,3% of the area) by
beginning of April.

Morning frost on April 9 and 10, and low temperatures to -10°C caused significant damage on just
sprouted plants. Sowing of sugar beet had to be repeated on 3.600 acres, and 40 acres were sown with other crop.
Accordingly, 26.680 acres remained sown with beet. in May and June, there were between 24.300 and 40.500
sugar beet plants per acre, and in average about 34.400 plants per acre. Thanks to favourable agroclimatic
conditions in May and June, and sufficient rainfall, sugar beet was growing well, and crop expectations were good.
By beginning of July, yield estimations were optimistic. In spite of frost, repeated sowing and reduced number of
plants per acre, a yield of 21 /acre was estimated, and over 560.000 t {otal quantity of beet.

However, due to very dry July, August and first decade of September, combined with very high
temperatures, sugar beet crop suffered significant drought stress.

About 20% of crop (over 5.000 acres) lost their leaves, and the reminder 80% of crop (about 20000 acres)
lost between 50-80% of leaves.

By beginning of September, the yield estimates were notably lower than those two months earlier. New
estimates were under 15 t/acre, and the total quantity of sugar beet under 380000 tons. Due to loss of leaves and
additional retro-vegetation, the sugar content was notably decreased, especially after rainfall in second half of
September.

Harvesting of sugar beet started on September 8, delivery to the factory on September 10, and processing
started on September 11, 2012.

At the beginning of the campaign, polarisation was 16,50%. Later on polarisation was constantly
decreasing due to retrovegetation. in the second half of the campaign, average polarisation was under 15%. At the
end of the campaign, average potarisation was 15,29%.

In the campaign 2012 a total of 439.156 tons of sugar beet were processed.

Average yield was 17,45 t/acre, average polarisation 15,29% and impurity 13,10%.

Out of the total quantity, 8.409 t of sugar beet were sent for processing to the factory Sladorana, Zupania,
as a service production.

CONCLUSION

The characteristics of the campaign 2012 are the following:

- Sugar beet was sown in March on 97,7% of the area

- Due to morning frost on Aprit 9 and 10, sowing repeated on 3600 acres (about 15% of the area), and on
the reminder 85% of the area the number of plants per acre were cut down by 15-30%.

- In spite of significant frost damages, thanks o favourable agrociimatic conditions and sufficient rainfall
during May and June, crops were in very good condition.

- Very unfavourable climatic conditions during July, August and September (very high temperatures and
insufficient rainfall) caused the reduction of sugar beet crop by 20 to 70%. Instead of planned 600000 t
of sugar beet, only 450000 { were harvested.

- Sugar beet guality was significantly lower than expected due to severe drought, and sugar yield was
only 2,38 t/acre instead of expected 3,44 t/acre.

According to production results trend achieved in the previous few years, an increase of sugar production per acre

would have been achieved in 2012 {o0.

A significant insufficiency of precipitations during whote 2011 also affected the results of production in 2012, During
2011 there were by 35,7% less precipitations compared to an average number, while in 2012 July and August were
extreemly drought with only 40,2 mm/m?, wich is only 25% of multy-year average (160,5 mm/m?).
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Il PROCESSING AND PRODUCTION RESULTS ANALYSES

3.1 Raw sugar procerssing technology and production results

During 2012, the processing of imported raw sugar was performed in two turns.

The first turn of raw sugar processing was performed between April 4 and May 14, when the total of
50.000 tones were processed. Total amount of 47.948,56 tons of sugar was produced in 41 day, at average daily
processing quantity of 1.221,67 tons.

The second turn of raw sugar processing was performed between December 6 and December 31, when
the total of 33.668,00 tons were processed. Total amount of 29.951,00 tons of sugar were produced in 26 day, at

average daily processing quantity of 1.294,92 tons.
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Item Description of good Unit Quantity
1 Sugar Total t 77.899,57
First ship t 47.948,57
Second ship t 29.951,00
2 Molasses Total t 1.947,33
First ship t 1.388,33
Second ship t 559,00
3.2 Sugar beet processing campaign results
Sugar beet campaign started on September 11 and lasted till November 28, 2012.
i . Produced Produced Service qty
Item Description of goods Unit 2011 2012 2012
1 Sugar t 85.712,00 61.110,00 1.140,00
2 Molasses t 23.111,00 22.544,00 443,19
3 Dry pulp L 24.500,00 13.002,00 232,00
4 Pressed pulp t - 32.775,00 -
Sugar production
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IV SALES ANALYSES FOR 2012

Total sales of sugar per packing units in 2012 is the following:

- sugar 50/1 59.091.457 kg
- sugar 25/1 3.435.600 kg
- stigar 1/1 28.483.900 kg
- liquide sugar 5.621.483 kg
- big bags 1200 kg 7.879.300 kg
- sugar 1000/1 19.339.000 kg
- sugar in buik 20.022.770 kg
- sugar 800/1 478.400 kg
- sugar 850/1 7.850 kg
- industrial sugar - other 143.795 kg
TOTAL 144.503.335 kg

Total sales of sugar in 2012 were by 9% lower compared {o previous year. The main reason is the
reduction of sales on EU market, so exports of sugar in 2012 were by 15% lower than previous year, while the
reduction of sales on domestic market was 3%.

V CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE, LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK

5.1 Financing and liguidity issues

Current production and other business activities in 2012, VIRO Sugar factory financed through:

- Sales of transitional stocks of 35.392 t of sugar, 17.246 t of molasses and 21.680 t of dry pulp

- Sales of 48.206 t of sugar and 1.794 t of molasses produced of raw sugar

- Sales of 58.606 t of sugar, 15.614 t of molasses, 13.002 t of dry pulp and 32.775 t of pressed pulp
produced of sugar beet

- Sales of 2.289 t of sugar bought on the market and

- Postponement of trade payables (protection, overhaul, and others) till the new campaign.

Settlement of current obligations towards suppliers in the total amount of HRK 948.147.594,36 have been
carried out as follows:

- Wire transfer 360.020.825,45 37.97%
- Advance payment 77.040.862,61 8,13%
- Compensation 243.979.032,81 25,73%
- Cession and assignment 10.509.929,55 1,11%
- Bill of Exchange 2.076.637,27 0,22%
- Foreign remittance 252 .596.897,83 26,64%
- Advance foreign remittance 1.923.408,84 0,20%

Buyers settled their obligations in the amount of HRK 1.146.201.343,16 as follows:

- Wire transfer 245 559 505,97 21,42%
- Advance payment 18.997.722,23 1,66%
- Compensation 251.769.691,03 21,97%
~ Cession and assignment 17.347.978,86 1,51%
- Bill of Exchange 128.440.590,65 11.21%
- Foreign remittance 109.020.233,28 9,51%

- Advance foreign remittance 375.065.621,14 32,72%



5.2 Cash flowin 2012

HRK
item AMOUNT
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 122.560.221
Amortisation 34.312.381
Increase of current liabilities 118.979.735
Decrease of current receivables 22.717.659
Decrease of stocks
Qther increase of cash flow
| Total increase of cash flow from operating activities 298.569.996
Decrease of current liabilities
Iincrease of current receivables
Stocks increase 32.408.919
Other decrease of cash flow 24.920.446
Il Total decrease of cash flow from operating activities 57.338.365
A1) NET INCREASE OF CASH FLOW FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES 241.231.631
A2) NET DECREASE OF CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of long-term fixed and intangible assets 1.530.367
Proceeds from sales of equity and debt financial instruments
Proceeds from interests 1.593.876
Proceeds from dividends
Other proceeds from investment activities 41.924
llf Total proceeds from investment activities 3.166.167
Acguisition of long-term fixed and intangible assets 31.754.969
Acquisition of equity and debt financial instruments
Other expenses for investment activities 65.611.568
IV Total expenses for investment activities 97.366.537
B1) NET INCREASE OF CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
B2) NET DECREASE OF CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 94.200.370
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales of equity and debt financial instruments
Proceeds from credit principals, due bills, borrowings and others 230.854.714
Cther proceeds from financial activities 1.194.232
V Total proceeds from financial activities 232.048.946
Expenses for credit principals and bonds instatments 315.196.219
Expenses for dividends 49.556.935
Expenses for financial leasing 7.417.850
Redemption of own shares 26.106.522
Other expenses for financial activities 1.045.802
VI Total expenses for financial activities 402.323.328
C1) NET INCREASE OF CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
C2) NET DECREASE OF CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 170.274.382
Total increase of cash flow
Total decrease of cash flow 2324311
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 49.916.889
increase of cash and cash equivalents
Decrease of cash and cash equivalents 23.243.121
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26.673.768
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5.3 Statement structure analyses

For consideration of Company’s financial position, and its assets, capital, receivables and liabilities, see
the structural Statement below.

STATEMENT
as per 31/12/2012
HRK
31/12/2011 31/12/2012
item DESCRIPTION Amount o, Amount % indeks
1 2 3 4 5 3 7 (5/3)
ASSETS
A)  LONG-TERM ASSETS (I+I-+HI1+1V) 569.800.534 5546 689.688.914 53,88 121
f Intangible assets {110 2) 531.083 0,05 448.027 0,04 84
1 Research and development expenses 518.268 0,05 305.598 0,03 76
2 Patents, licences, concessions and similar rights 12.815 0,00 52.429 4,00 409
il Tangible assets (3 to 9) 272801344 2655 242467121 18,92 89
3 Land and foresis 3.685.749 0,36 5.184.243 0,41 141
4  Buildings $1.588.110 7.94  84.452.874 6,60 104
5 Plants and equipments 160.293.587 1560  146.841.067 1147 92
6 Prepayments for tangible assets 2.587.429 0,25 -
7 Tangible assets in progress 23.411.903 2,28 3.007 044 0,23 13
8 Residential buildings and dwellings 9,300 0,00 9.300 0,00 100
g  Ofther tangible assets 1.225.266 0,12 2672593 0,21 218
m Financial assets (10 10 12) 296542243 2886 447073766 34,93 151
10  Shares in affiliated companies 285332803 2777 408623353  3.Q3 143
11 Loans, deposits and guarantees 11.209.440 1,09 38.450.413 3,00 343
v Receivables 24.864 0,00
12  Receivables from sales on credit 24 864 0,00
B) CURRENT ASSETS (V+VI+VH+VIID 455543559 44,33 585140394 4572 128
Y Stocks (13 to 16) 211954385 2063 247106459 1931 117
13 Raw material and consumables 20.391.554 198 72441728 5,66 355
14 Trading goods 175331477 17,06 155104304 12,1187 88
15  Final products 2.869.607 0,28 7.022.956 0,55 245
16  Prepayments 13.361.747 1,30 12.537.381 0,98 94
Vi Receivables (17 to 21) 131418206 1279  212.312.573 16,59 162
17 Receivables from affiliated companies 23.314.628 227 48237692 3.85 211
18 Trade receivables 78.898.405 768 949435658 742 120
19 Receivables from employees 150 0,00 -
20 Receivables from state and other institutions 26.020.842 282  68.120.065 5,32 235
21 Other receivables 184.420 0,02 11.008 0,00 6
Vi Financial assets (22 {0 24) 85.497.110 8,32 121.252.683 9,47 142
22 Loans to affitiated companies 1.506.678 0,15 11.781.770 0,92 782
23 Securities 39.779.361 387 21551755 1,68 54
24 Loans, deposits and guarantees 44211.071 430  87.919.158 §87 199
Vill  Cash at bank and in hand 26.673.768 2,60 4.468.679 0,35 17
C) PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME 2122790 4,21 5.046.859 0,39 238
D) LOSS ABOVE CAPITAL LEVEL
E} TOTAL ASSETS (A+B+C+D) 1.027.565.883 100,00 1279.876.167 100,00 125

)
F} OFF STATEMENT ITEMS 10.852.530 106 225262526 1780 2.076




page 8

HRK
31/12/2011 3111212012
item DESCRIFTION Amount % Amount o indeks
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 (5/3)
LIABILITIES
A} CAPITAL AND RESERVES (1+2+3+4+5+6) 5324402564 51,82  685.171.561 53,53 129
1 Subscribed capital 244600060 24,29 249.600.060 19,50 100
2 Capital gains 9.064.213 0,88  10.368.101 0.81 114
3  Revaluation reserve 19.389.313 1,89 56348673 4,40251 291
4 Reserve 874.338 0,08 3.726.291 0,29 426
5 Retained earning 130.952.109 1274 226526538 17,70 173
6  Profit for the year 122560221 1193 138603898 10,83 113
B) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (7 to 8) 142272174 1385  84.726.068 6,62 60
7  Liabilities for loans 16.985.406 1,65  19.186.058 1,50 113
8 Lliabilities to credit institutions 125286678 1219  65.540.010 512 52
C) CURRENT LIABILITIES {9t017) 350.998.386 34,16 506.529.900 3958 144
9 Liabilities to affiliated companies 9.040.876 0,68 574.219 0,04 6
10 Liabilities based on ipans 5.198.874 0,51 24.675.690 1,93 475
11 Liabilities to credit institutions 65.505.340 6,37  79.804.451 6.24 122
12 Liabilities to advancements, deposits and guaranties 154.321.367 1502  107.149.234 8,37 69
13 Liabilities to suppliers 111.464.083 10,85 273.859.056 21,40 246
14 Liabilities to employees 1.897.442 0,18 1.743.407 0,14 92
15 Taxes, contributions and fees liabilities 1.806.990 0,19 1.134.550 0,08 60
16 Liabilities based on shares of result 11.874 0,00 16.556.077 1,29 139431
17 Other current liabilities 1.652.440 0.16 1.032.216 0,08 62
D) DEFERRED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME 1.855.069 0,18 3.448,638 0,27 186
E) TOTAL LIABILITIES (A+B+C) 1027.565883 100,00 1.279.876.167 100,00 125
F) OFF STATEMENT ITEMS 10.852.530 1,06 225262526 17,60 2076
54 Investmentsin 2012
During 2012 Company made following investments stated by allotments:
. Amount in EURQ 0
Hem ALLOTMENT Amount in HRK (1 EURO=7.5 HRK) %o
1 [nvestment into technology and 5.626.513,00 750.201,75 28,69
equipment naintenance
2 Investment in buildings 1.522.236,71 202.964,89 7,76
3 Transport means and passenger cars 601.585,15 80.211,35 3,07
4 Telecom means and office equipment 355.671,60 47.422.88 1,81
5 Other 502.697,93 67.026,39 2,58
TOTAL (1 to 5) 8.608.704,48 1.147.827 .26 43,90
6 Equipment leasing investments 2.672.057,65 356.274,35 13,63
7 Business premises leasing investments 6.780.762,38 904.101,65 34,58
8 Investments into apartments 1.548.982 93 206.531,08 7,80
GRAND TOTAL (1 to 8) 19.610.507 44 2.614.734,33 100,00

From the above review it is evident that out of EUR 2.614.734,33 total investments, 50,08% was allocated

to investments into technology and equipment maintenance.
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VI EMPLOYEES

Next review shows the structure of calculated working hours for 2012:

ltem TYPE GF FEE Hours %
CALCULATED WORKING HOURS (A+B) 504.287 100,00
A) Normal hours of work 504.287 100,00
B} Overtime
STRUCTURE OF NORMAL HOURS (110 6) 504.287 100,00
1 Working hours 372604 73,89
2 Annual vacation 55.436 10,99
3 State holiday 21.921 4,35
4 Sick ieave up to 42 days 5474 1,09
5 Sick leave over 42 days 9.704 1,92
8 Paid absences and days off 39.148 7,76

Based on the caiculated warking hours, during 2012 there were in average 241,52 employees (seaschal
workers included).

Next review shows the structure of the working days of an average woorker in 2012:

192,85 - Days spend at work in the Factory
28,69 - Days of annual hollidays
11,35 - Days of state holidays
2,83 - Days of sick leave up to 42 days
5,02 - Days of sick leave over 42 days
20,26 - Days of paid absences and days off

Next table shows the fluctuations in the number of employees during the year (without seasonal workers)
by qualification structure:

I Situation per Went during Gone durin Situation per

Qualification structure 1212011 2012 2012 31/12/2012
University degree 36 ' 5 10 31
Associate degree 5 1 2 4
Secondary qualification 101 7 2 106
Lower qualification
Operative 2 2
Skilled worker 81 3 58
Semi-skilled worker 4 4
Low-skilled worker 20 1 21

TOTAL 229 14 17 226




Vil PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR 2012

L index
ltem Description 2011 2012 2012/2011
1. Operating incomes 872.654.576 1.090.632.019 125
1.1 Sales revenue 852.277.165 1.070.259.940 126
1.2 Other operating incomes 20.377 411 20.372.079 100
2. Financial incomes 4.647.860 13.554.162 292
2.1 Incomes related to dependant corporates 12.246 744.382 6.079
22 incomes related to independent corpeorates 4635614 12.809.780 276
2.3 Other financial incomes
| TOTAL INCOME (1+2) 877.302.436 1.104.186.181 126
4, Material costs 722.660.929 818.384.893 113
4.1 Cost of raw material and consumables 543.868.035 594.137.875 109
4.2 Cost of goods sold 137.574.787 183.457.324 133
4.3 QOther service costs AM.217.107 40.789.604 99
5. Staff costs 28.965.340 31.265.775 108
6. Amortisation and value adjustment of long term 34.312.381 26.803.071 107
assets
7. Other operating costs 10.135.686 §.227 232 81
8. Other operational costs 35.045.480 20.081.610 57
9. Finished products stock value increase 94.723.355
10. Finished products stock value decrease 20.227.079
1. OPERATING EXPENSES (4+5+6+7-8+9+10) 736.396.461 934.989.660 127
12. Financial expenses 18.345.754 30.592.623 167
12.1. Expenses related to dependant corporates 288.503 260.164 90
12.2. Expenses related to independent corporates 17.469.031 26.023.319 149
12.3. Unrealized losses on financial assets 3.950.600
12.4, Other financial expenses 588.220 359.140
li TOTAL EXPENSES (11+12) 754.742.215 965.582.283 128
1l PROFIT OF THE YEAR (I-Il} 122.560.221 138.603.898 113
v PROFIT TAX EXPENSE
Y NET PROFIT (lll-IV) 122.560.221 138.603.898 113
13. Other comprehensive income 3.020.600 2.503.997 83
Vi COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (V+13) 125.580.821 141.107.895 112
Vil EBIT 136.258.115 155.642.359 114
Vil EBITDA 170.570.496 192.445.430 113
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EBTDA - Earnings before taxes, interest, depreciation and amartization for 2012 amounts to HRK 192,45
million, while in the previous year it was HRK 170,57 million, which is an increase of 13%.

Realised comprehensive income of the observed period in the amount of HRK 141,11 million is higher

compared to the previous year by 12%.

Achievment of these indicators of of financial operations is mostly the result of multi-year investments into
modernization of productional equipment and increase of installed processing capacity, followed by considerable

reduction of cost per unit of product.

Achieved total income of HRK 1.104,19 million is by 26% higher compared to the previous year. Exports
sale share of the income is increased from 38,22% to 48,58%, while the domestic sales share is reduced from

61.49% to 48,34%.

Total expenses realised in the amount of HRK 865,58 million are by 27,94% higher compared to the

previous year.

Material costs and costs of sold goods amount to HRK 818,38 milflion, and are by 13,25 % higher than

those in 2011.

Staff costs are increased by 7,94% because of increased working hours.

Amortization costs reached HRK 36,80 miltion, and are by 7,26% higher compared to the previous year.
The increrase of amortization costs is due to amortization of newly purchased equipment.

Financial expenses amouunt to HRK 30,59 mil, and are by 66,76% higher compared to the previous year.

VIll KEY INDICARORS OF BUSINESS EFFICIENCY

8.1 Indicators of liguidity and financial stability

For the analysis of liquidity and financial stability as per 31/12/2012, following indicators are presented:

ltem INDICATOR Standard value 2011 2012 5i4 503

1 2 3 4 5 8 7
a) Liguidity

1 Instant liquidity ratic - 0,08 001 12

2 Quick ratio >1 0,45 043 95 43

3 Current ratio >2 1,30 1,16 89 58
b) Financial stability

4 - Networking capital in 000 HRK - 104.545.173,00 78.610.494,00 75 -
- Share of net working capital in ~50 2295 1343 590 97
financing of current assets, %

5  Financial security =1 0,86 0,862 95 82

6 Degree of self-financing, % =100 68,10 73,14 107 73
Long-term assets/ long-term sources, ~100 118,39 11163 94 112

%

Indicators of financial stability show to the degree of indebtedness, and the following financing of assets:



000 HRK
, index
ltem DESCRIPTION Unit 2011 2012 201212011
1 Current assets 000 Kn 455.543 56 585.140,39 128
1.1 Own funds 000 Kn 245.750,73 399.059,14 162
. 000 Kn 209.792,83 186.081,25 89
1.2 Borrowed assets {current liabilities) % 100,00 100.00
2 Long-term assets 000 Kn 569.899,53 689.688,91 121
000 Kn 284.566,73 281.085,56 99
2.4 Own funds % 49,93 40,75
000 Kn 285.332,80 408.623,35 143
22 Borrowed assets % 50.07 59 25
3 Prepaid expenses 000 Kn 212279 5.046,86 238
000 Kn 212279 5.046,86 238
34 Owniunds % 100,00 100,00
4 Loss above capital level 000 Kn
5 Total assets 000 Kn 1.027.565,88 1.279.876,17 125
51 Total own capital 000 Kn 532.440,25 685.171,56 129
‘ (1.1+2.1+3.1) % 51,82 53,53
59 Borrowed assets-current and long- 000 Kn 49512563 594.704,61 120
’ term liabilities-loss above capital % 48,18 46,47
(1.2+2.2+4)
The above table shows the total assets degree of indebtedness of 46,47%.
8.2 Indicators of assets activity and business profitability
index
ftem INDICATOR 2011 2012 2012/2011
a) Assets activity
1 Total assets furnover ratio 0,74 0,96 129
2 Current assets turnover ratio 1,49 210 140
3 Current assets binding period (days) 241 172 71
4  Trade receivables
- Turnover ratic 577 8,65 150
- Collection period {(days) 62 42 67
b) Profitability
5  Net profit margin 13,97 12,55 90
6  Gross profit margin (operating) 15,81 14,27 91
7  EBITDA margin 19,55 17,65 90
8 ROA 11,03 10,83 91
9 ROE 23,02 20,23 88
10  Net profit per employee 170.275,57 584.257,15 343
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IX OWNERSHIP AND COMPANY SHARES TRADING

Item SHAREHOLDER i Structure in %
shares

1 EO0S-ZD.0.0. 466.500 33,64
2 ROBIC D.O.O. 416.100 30,01
3 ZADRO MARINKO 127.936 9,23
4 SOCIETE GENERALE-SPLITSKA BANKA D.D./ AZ OMF 117.069 8,44
5 HYPO ALPE-ADRIA-BANK D.D./ PBZ CROATIA OSIGURANJE OMF 42.181 3,04
6 HYPO ALPE-ADRIA-BANK D.D./ RAIFFEISEN OMF 26.103 1,88
7  HRVATSKA POSTANSKA BANKA D.D. 23.257 1,68
8 SOCIETE GENERALE-SPLITSKA BANKA D.D./ AZ PROFIT DMF 13.066 0,94
9 ERSTE & STEIERMARKISCHE BANK D.D./CSC 11.021 0,79
10 SOCIETE GENERALE-SPLITSKA BANKA D.D./ ERSTE PLAVI OMF 10.033 0,72
11 CORIC DANKO 8.400 0,61
12  HRVATSKA POSTANSKA BANKA D.D./ CLIENTS SUMMARY ACCOUNT 7.216 0,52
13 OTP BANKA D.D./INS683 3.800 0,27
14 OTHER INVESTORS AND SMALL SHAREHOLDERS 113.985 8,22
TOTAL (1 to 14) 1.386.667 100,00

At the end of 2012, the Company does not owe any of its own shares.

At the end of 2012, the stock market price was HRK 530,00 each, and the financial transactions turnover
reached HRK 44.574.064,74. Market capitalization in the amount of HRK 734,9 million was achieved in the reported

period, and profit amounted to HRK 99,95 per stock.
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X ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Viro Sugar Factory is a big consumer of natural gas, being the main energy source for the production of
sugar. During 2012 for both sugar beet and raw sugar campaigns natural gas consumption reached in total
14.327 679 Nm® |

The consumption of natural gas is graduaily reduced over the years, due to the reconstruction of
production plant and modernization of equipment made during 2009, 2010 and 2011, and thus the emissions
to the atmosphere.

Combustion of natural gas in the power plant and combustion of coke in the lime-kiln are the sources of
CO, emissions to the atmosphere. The level of emission is inspected yearly by an authorized iaboratory, and is

below prescribed limit, as well as by the Agency and the Ministry of Environmental Protection. By the new
Greenhouse gases emission permit, emissions from production of lime are excluded.

Emission of solid particles produced during beet pulp drying process, as well as gases produced by
combustion of natural gas in the beet drier, are the second emission being monitored by the authorized company.
Test results are within prescribed limits and are submitted to the Agency and the Ministry of Environmental
Protection.

Viro Sugar Factory has its own water treatment plant (anaerobic and aerobic section), for freatment of its
own waste water (from the process and rainfall waters), as well as municipal waste water from town of Virovitica.

In order to reduce fresh water consumption in various stages of sugar production, water for beet unloading
and washing in the factory is recycled, as well as the cooling system water. In this way, considerable amount of
fresh water is saved.

Viro has its own boiler house for production of steam necessary for the process, producing at the same
time electro energy (co-generation} for own consumption. Periodical surpluses of el. energy are sold to the net, at
quantities and prices agreed with the local electro energy distribution company.,

During operations of the sugar factory, dangerous and non-dangerous waste is produced, and reported

on the prescribed forms to the Environment Protection Agency.
In accordance to law prescriptions, authorized companies specialized for the disposal of waste materials

collect all kinds of waste materials from the factory. Records about production, storage and disposal are kept in the
factory, in accordance to all regulations on this subject.

Viro Sugar Factory is the first company in Croatian industry which obtained an Environmentat Permit in
accordance to IPPC Directive. Viro Sugar Factory is certified by ISQ 9001, 150 22000 and 1SO 14001,
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Xl FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY

Future development and operaticnal plan is based on following areas:

- Sugar production and sales plan, and
- investment plan

Investment plan for 2013 is based on the further increase of energy efficiency of the plant, and keeping
up the high level of process safety by reconstruction and improvement of some sections of the plant.

The total investment fund planned for this year will be allocated to following items:

- Annual reparation of process equipment

- Biogas utilization

- Reconstruction of silo and packing room dedusting system

- Replacement of the switch units - transformer TO1 and TO2 and generator
- Extending of the belt conveyer and reconstruction of Object 17

- Replacement of the safety pipeline in anaerobic tank

- Restructing of floors in refinery and sugar drier building

- Gypsum silo and Sladglig tank repairs

Sugar beet production and processing

By the production and finance plan for 2013, contracting of beet production on 19.280 acres is planned,
which means processing of 429.000 tons of sugar beet, and production of 60.000 tons of white sugar, 17.000 tons of

molasses, 13.000 tons of dry pulp and 30.000 tons of pressed puip.
We wouild like to mention that the planned acreage is already compietely contracted, so with optimal
agro climatic conditions, we can expect the realization of good production and financial results.

Raw sugar processing

Besides sugar beet, during 2013 the processing of 40.700 tons of raw sugar is planned, which means
of 39.000 tons of white sugar and 2.500 tons of molasses.
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TVORNICA SECERA d.d.
VIROVITICA, MATIJE GUPCA 254

STATEMENT OF PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR PRODUCTION OF THE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR 1Y 2012

With this statement, in compliance with article 407, paragraph 2 of the Law
on capital market, I state that to the best of our knowledge

- the set of revised financial reports of VIRO TVORNICA SECERA d.d.,
Virovitica for 1Y 2012, produced by applying International standards of
financial reporting and in compliance with the Croatian Law on
Accounting, provides an integral and true overview of assets and
liabilities, loss and profit, financial position and operations of the
company.

- the Management report contains a true overview of business results
and position of the company, with a description of the most significant
risks and uncertanties to which the company is exposed.

In Virovitica, on March 21, 2013

RESPONSIBLE PERSON

PRESIDENT OF THE

AWNAGEMENT BOARD:
O

Zeliko Zadro, dipl.oec
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BALANCE SHEET

31.12.2012

as at

A) RECEIVABLES FOR SUBSCRIBED BUT NOT PAID-IN CAPITAL
B} ‘LONG-TERM ASSETS (063+01D+020+029+033]
. iNTANGIBLE ASSETS (004 t0 003)

1. Asses development
B 2. Concessrgns patents I!cences fe
3. Goodwif

lntangrble assets in preparation

4 Prepayments for purchase of infangible assets _ ' - [

6. Other intangible assets
“TANGIBLE ASSETS {011 to 079)
1. Land

2. Buildings
3. Plant and equrpment

=y TooiS facllity anventory P transport asse‘ts 8 e e

5. Brciogloalassets
= Prepayments o tangrbie assets USRS
7 “Tangible assets in progress

8. Cther tangible assets
79, Investments in burldmgs

LONG-TERM FINANCFAL ASSETS (02? io 028)
1. Investments (shares} with related parties

" 2 Loans given to relaled parties

3 Partacrpatrrrg interast (shares)

4. Loans to entrepreneurs in Whom the enlity holds participating interests e
5. Investments in securities T
& Loans, deposis S s ST e

T Other Eong term financial assets

"8 investments accounted by equity method

IV. RECEIVABLES (030 to 032)

"1 Receivables from related parties

2. Receivables from based on trade loans

3. Other receivables
\'/WD'EFERRED'TAXASSETS‘ e e e
C} SHORT TERM ASSETS (035+D43+050+058)
CINVENTORIES (036 to 042)
1. Raw- material and supplses
2. Work in progress
T goods e e et ee e
4 Merchand;se e

G601

002 569899534 689.688.914

003 "7 s31o83] 448027

004 Tsisoesl | 395508
de and service marks, software and otherrights | 005 12815 52.429

006

w07

008

009

010 | 272801344 242.167.421

011 | 3665749  5.184.243

012 ‘81588110 84.452.374]

013 160293587  146.841.067

014 ‘

15

S T

017 23411903 3.007.044

018 ga00| 9300

“p19 12252686 2672593

020 296.542.243|  447.073.768

021 | 285332.803| 405.623.353

022 332803

023

024

025

“026 119200440 38.460.413

el A 38.450.4°

328

pore T -

aas! +.8

031 24564

o i

s

034 | 455543.559)  585.140.304

e Prepayments - |nventorres e e e e e
6. Long - term assets held for sales

”7 Blologrcal assets

I| RECEIVABLES (044 to 049)

1. Receivables from related partles T
5 Accounts receivable N
" 3. Receivables from partlcrpatsng par%;es

"4, Receivables from emp oyees and members of related partles e
5. Receivables from government and other |nst|!ut|ons

6 Cther recewabies

I SHORT TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS 0 to 057y
%, Shares (stocks) in related pames

"2 Loans gwen to related parties
3. Participating interests (shares)

5. Investments in sec 7
8. Loans deposﬁs efe.”

4. Loans fo entrepreneurs in whom the entity holds participating interests

7 Other financial assets
IV. CASH AT BANK AND INCASHIER
D} PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED REVENUE
E) TOTAL ASSETS (001+002+034+0 59y
) OFE-BALANCE RECORDS

03 ~ 247.106.459
03 72441728
o7
038 .
el S
040 13381747
ot
042
043 | 131.418208] 212312573
044 Tpastases| 49237692
045 78208.405] 94943658
a6 598.405)  ©94.943.655
047 150
‘048 29020843  68.120.065
049 184.426] 11.008
050 85.497.110]  121.252.683
ot . B5.497.1107  121.252.683
052 1506.678]  11.781.770
i 1506678  11.781.770
054
055 30779361 21551755
086 | 44211071 87919158
i el
‘o588 26673.768 4.468.679
059 2122790]  5.046.859
060 | 1.027.566.883} 1.279.876.167
061 10.852.630| 226262526




LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL::

A) CAPITAL AND RESERVES (063+054+065+071+072+075+078).: _‘ i
| SUBSCRIBED GAPITAL e

il CAPITAL RESERVES

. RESERVES FROM PROF?T (066+067 068+069+D7’0)
1. Reserves prescribed by low
2. Reserves for treasury shares
3. Treasury stecks and shares (deduction)
4, Statutory reserves

5. Otherreserves

532.440.2584

685 17 561

N REVALUATION RESERVES 7
V. RETAINED EARNINGS OR ACCUMULATED LOSS (073-074)
1. Retained earmngs
2. Accumulated foss
VI. PROFITILOSS FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (076.077) 77

1. Profit for the current year
2. Loss for the current year
1X. MINORITY INTERESTS

B} PROVISIONS {080 to 082}

1. Provisions for pensions, severance pay, and simiar liabiflies

 248.600.060 249.600.080
 9.054.213] 10.368.101
| 19.389.313] 56345673

12,480,003

43866670
36.957.360| 0
874338 3726091
30.952100| 226526538
150.952.108| 226,576,536
225 560 221|  138.603.898
122560.221| 138603 898
et s

2. Reserves for tax habxl:tles

3 Other reserves ’
C) LONG - TERM |

1. L|abst|tses to refated partles

ABILIT!ES (084 to 092}

ilities for foans, ctep03|£s elc.

-5
4. Liabilities for recelved prepayments o

5. Accounte payable
|ab' ities arising from debt securmes

8 Biher long-term liabilities

9. Deferred tax | |ab|£|ty
D} SHORT - TERM LIAB|L1TIES (094 to 105}
1. Liabifities to refated partres

2 _L;abliltles for loans, deposnts etc.

"4 Liabilities for recelved prepayments

4
5. Accounts | payable
6. Liabilities arising from debt securltles
5
8

. Llabllatles to employees

'_ 10. Liabilities to share - holders
ilities for fong-term assets held for sale
12. Other short term liabilities

F) TOTAL - CAPJTAL AND LIABILITIES (062+079+033+093+106}
G) OFF-BALANCE RECORDS

16,985,496
ties to banks and other financial mstltut;ens e 1 125285578 6550
to entrepreneurs in whom the entrty hoids partscrpatmg mterests
 350.998.386(  506.529.900
" eod0a7e|” 574.219
5.198.874 24 676 890
Liabilities to banks and other financial mst|tut|ons T 65.505.340] 79804, 431
______  154.321.367|  107.149.234
111464083  273850.085
. Liabilities to entrepreneurs in whom the entity holds paticipating interests 00 |

" 101 1897442 1743407
"9, Liabilities for taxes. contnbutror_ts and snnllar fees 7 Tq0z | 1 906 .000] 1134550
103 | 11874l 16556077
166 T Tl
E)} DEFFERED SETTLEMENTS OF CHARGES AND INCOME DEFERRED TO FUTURE PERIOD| 106 1.85506%|  3.448.638
107 | 1.027.565.883| 1279.676.167

08 | 0. 852 530]

APPENDIX to balance sheet(to be filled in by entrepreneur that prépareés consolidated annial finaneial téporty .~

225 262526

CAPITAL AND RESERVES o
1. Attributed to eqwty holdars of parent eompany

109

2. Attributed o minority interest

110




PROFIT AND LLOSS ACCOUNT
for the period 01.01.2012. do 31.12.2012.

VIRO TVORNICA SECERA d.d

Lsalesrevenue O M2 | 852277165| 1070259940
2. Other operating revenues 113 20377411 0372079
ii. OPERATING EXPENSES (115+116+120+124+125+126+129+130) - 114 | 736306461 932988660

Changes in vaiue of work in progress and finished products 115 64,723 355
"3 Material costs {117 to 119} o o 722560920 818 845
a) Raw material and matcrsal ‘costs 58385 " Bg4 137,875
by Costs of goods sold 183,457 22

) Other external cosls e T - B B ET- R 217 10?
3 Staffcosts (121t 123) 120 | osessuan| et 7?57:5
5t salarxesqndwageé S P R T 17‘586.':6“”' 18:487
b) Cost for taxes and con{nl)uhons from salaries T B - 2 .
&) Eoniributions on gross salaries o 123 it
4. Depreciation e T 14 34312381] 36,
5. Other costs e | s | soamess| saenas
& i aent (1371128 SRS 12 T o S
”mé)nlmpalrmcm of fong-term assets 4(f|nan0|a| assets excluded) 1 127 e
b) lmpairment of short - term assels {rm ncual assets excluded} e 128
S Brevieions i vttt e et 125
8. Other operating costs - T ase. | 350454800 20081610
IH. FINANCIAL INCOME {132 to 136) 131 4.647.860 13.554.162

nd similar income from refated |,

1. Interest income, foreign &
parties

2. mtefest mcome fore:gne

'3 Share’in n}g:gme from affil

" 4. Unrealized gams{mcome) from i ncial assets
5. Other fmanaal income

744362

income from non -
mtetests

T Tassasrsa| 30592623

" inferest expenses, foreign exchange josses, dividends and similar expenses from |
related parties
) 2. Enterest expenses foreign excha

288,503 260.164

3,950,000
568220 359140

V. INCOME FROM INVESTMENT - SHARE IN PROFIT OF ASSOCIATED ENTREPRENEURS
Vi, LOSS FROM INVESTMENT - SHARE IN LOSS OF ASSOCIATED ENTREPRENEURS
Vil. EXTRAORDINARY - OTHER INCOME
Viil. EXTRAORDINARY - OTHER EXPENSES
IX. TOTAL INCOME (117+131+142 + 1wy
X, TOTAL EXPENSES (114+137+143 +
XI. T OR LOSS BEFORE TAXA
YT Broft before taxation (148-147)
2. Loss before taxailon (14? 46)
Hil. PROFITTAX
Xili, PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (148-151)
" 4. Profit for the period {14
"2 Loss y
APPENDIX 16 PSL sccount{to be filled in by entrepreneur that prepares consolidated financial reparty /o0
XIV. PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
1. Attributed to equiifliblders of parem‘f:ompany 1857
s i (& minory niorast ! R . e VR S
STATEMENT QF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME{IFRS) e
. PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (= 152)

@r730243%) 1104186181
754.742215; 965582283
Tq22560.221]  138.693.398
122560291) | 138503898
o

122560221

S| 000
3, 020 GGD 2.503.99?

208

Profit or Iess from reevaluation of financial assets avallable fo

2.
3.

4. Gains of losses on efficient cash flow hedging

5. Gams or losses on efficient hedge of a net investment in foreign countrles
e

7.

Share in other comprehenswe income / loss of associated compames
7. Actuarial gams [ losses on defined benefit plans )
Hi. TAX ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
lV NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OR LOSS FOR THE PEREOD (158 166} A
V. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (157+167) 1 68 125580321 141.107.895
APPENDD to Statement.of ‘other compraenhensive income o befilled in'by, entrepreneur that prepares consolidated financial report}’
Vi. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OR LOSS FOR THE PER!OD
1. Altributed to equliy holders of pareni company ey
T3 Alfribuled to mmcmly interest T T 170




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
1.1.2012

iINDIRECT METHOD
do

3t.12.2012

1, Pref»t before tax

122.560.221 138.603. 893

2. Depreciation 34312381 36.803.071
3. Increase in short term liabilities  118.979.735)  121.754.587
" 4. Decrease in short term receivables 227176859

5 Decrease in inventories e
8. Otherincrease incashflow 1.503.569
1. Total increase in cash flow from operating activities (001 to 006) | 298.569.996]  298.755.125

1. Decrease in short term babilties e

2. Increase in short term receivables

"3 Increase ininventories  Trrmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm 32 408 919

4. Other decrease in cash flow | 24820448
ii. Totaf decrease in cash flow from operating activities (008 to 011) | 67.338.365|  182.375.231
A1) NET INCREASE IN CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES | 241.231.831]  116.379.894
A2) NET DECREASE iN IN CASH FLOW FROM OPERATiNG ACTIVJT!ES o 0
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES fopite B R e

1. Cash inflows from sales of long-term tanglble and mtanglble asse’ts 1.530.367 12.475.539

2. Cash inflows from sales of equify and debt instruments UTUTYCTT

3 Interests receipts 1593876\  2.442.364
4. Dividend receipts N Y N

5. Other cash inflows from investing activities 41924 23.154.689
HL Total cash inflows from inv tmg ctiv (015 -t-i)'-ﬁ"'ié)' T ' 3 166 67| 38 263 671
1. Cash outfiow for purchase of long-term tangible and intangible assets 31754969 18561331

2. Cash outflow for acquls;tlon of eqwty and debt financial instr uments
3 Other cash outflow Tor mves{mg activities

V. Total cash outflow for mvestmg activities {021 do 023}

B'T) NET INCREASE IN CASH FLOW FRON! iNVESTING ACTIVITIES (020—924)

a7 366 537
o

148.692.208

B2) NET DECREASE IN CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTNITIES )
CASH.FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES =0

| 94.200.370]

128.989.868

L Cash inflow from: issuing property and debt flnanmal.mstruments -

3. Other proceeds from financial actlwiies

roceeds from the credit principal, promissory notes, borrowmgs and other ioans ]

V. Total cash inflows from financial ‘activities {027 to 029)

1. Cash outflow for repayment of credit principal and bonds h
2. Cash outfiow for dividends paed

3. Cash outflow for financial iease e
) 4. Cash outflow for purchase of treasury shares
5 Other cash outflow for financial acttvmes

1.194.232

- 854 o
308.815.871

198.584.123

Vi. Total cash outflow for financial activities (931 to 035)

C1) NET INCREASE IN CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

C2) NET DECREASE IN CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTWITIES

Total increase in cash flow (013 — 014 + 025 - 026 + 037 - 038)

Total decrease in cash flow (014~ 013 + 026 — 025 + 038 - 037)
cash equwa jents at the begmmng of the period

Increase of cash and cash equivalents

031 318.196.219)  231.481.600
032 | 49556935 27733340
933 A1l 8535447

Decrease of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiiiéléhfé at the end of the period

038 | 170274.382] 9595115
R acitter S
040  n243a21]
o3 e e
P e
043 T 23243421 22,205,089
044 26.673.768]  4.468.679




CHANGE IN CAPITAL STATEMENT

for the period fromi 1.1.2010 1 31.12.2010

1. Subscribed Capltai R 001 249.600.060;  249.600.060
2. Capital reserves ' 002 2.064.213]  10.368.101
7 3. Profit resewes I 003 | 19389.313 56.346.673

4. Retained profit or loss carried forward 004 130.952.100] 226526538
5. Profit or loss of the current year 005 | 122560221 138.603.898
6 Revaluation of fixed tanglble assels 006 4473833 3726 291'

7. Revaluation of |ntangab e assets Toor | |
8. Revaluation of financial property available for sale 008 35995000 00 0

5y Offar rei?éluatlon 006
10. Total capital and reserves (EDP 001 through 009) " 010 | 532.440254| 685.171.56%
11. Formgn exchange dafferences from net mvestments in foreign operations” L £ R .

12, Current and deferred taxes (part) Mz |

13. Cash flow protection 013 R o
e Changes A accountmg po%i(‘,les B R

15. Correction of significant mistakes from the previous period 015

s equlty changes 016 e ,

17. Total increase or decrease of capital (EDP 011 through 016) 017 | ol 0
17 a. Assigned to holders of parent company’s capital 018

17 b. Assigned to minority interest 019

items decreasing capital are entered as negative values. Data under £DP 001 through 009 are entered as status on the date of balance.
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Responsibility for the unconsolidated financial statements

Pursuant to the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia, the Management of the Company is responsible
for ensuring that unconsolidated financial statements are prepared for each financial year in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("the IFRSs") as published by the International Accounting
Standards Board, which give a true and fair view of the financial position and results of operations of Viro

tvornica Secera d.d. (“the Company”) for that period.

The Management has a reasonable expectation that the Company tias-adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Management continues to adopt the

going concern hasis in preparing the unconsolidated financial statements.

In preparing those unconsolidated financial statements, the responsibilities of the Management Board
include ensuring that:

o suitable accounting policies are selected and then applied consistenily;
= judgments and estimates are reasonable and prudent;

¢ the applicable accounting standards are followed, subject to any material depariures disclosed and
explained in the unconsolidated financial statements; and

the unconsolidated financial statemenis are prepared on the going concern basis, unless ii is
inappropriaie io assume that the Company will continue as a going concern.

The Managemeni is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and must also ensure ihat the unconsolidaied
financial statements comply with the Accounting Act. The Management is also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities.

Signed on behalf of the Management of the Company by:
0
Zeljko Zr%xg:ro,"Pr\esident of the Management Board
l/ g

| ) e

et :
i

!
\ i T
LA . - ]

= e w

Viro tvornica Secera d.d.
Matije Gupca 254
33000 Virovitica
Republic of Croatia

1 March 2013

Viro tvornica $ecera d.d., Virovitica 1



E Deloitte d.o.0
e 0 i e ZagrebTower
Radnicka cesta 80
10 000 Zagreb

Hrvatska
OIB: 11686457780

Tel: +385 (0) 1 2351 900
Fax: +385 (0) 1 2351 999
www.deloitte.com/hr

Independent Auditor's Report
To the owners of Viro tvornica Seéera d.d.

We have audited the unconsolidated financial statements of Viro tvornica Secera d.d. ("the Company"),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2012, and the related
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders' equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes to the unconsolidated financial statements.

Responsibility for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with [nternational Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
eIror.

Auwditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these unconsolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the unconsolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the unconsolidated financial statements. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due io
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Drustvo upisano u sudski registar Trgovagkog suda u Zagrebu: MBS 030022053; uplacen temeljni kapital: 44.900,00 kuna; é&lanovi
uprave: Eric Daniel Olcott and Branislav Vrtaénik; poslovna banka: Zagrebacka banka d.d., Paromlinska 2, 10 000 Zagreb, Z. racun/bank
account no, 2360000-1101896313; SWIFT Code: ZABAHR2X IBAN: HR27 2360 0001 1018 9631 3; Privredna banka Zagreb d.d.,
Ratkoga 6, 10 000 Zagreb, Z. raéun/bank account no. 2340009-1110098294; SWIFT Code: PBZGHR2X IBAN: HR38 2340 0091 1100
9829 4; Raiffeisenbank Austria d.d., Petrinjska 59, 10 000 Zagreb, Z. racun/bank account no. 2484008—1100240905; SWIFT Code:
RZBHHR2X IBAN: HR10 2484 0081 1002 4090 5

Deloitte se odnosi na Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, pravnu osobu esnovanu sukladno pravu Ujedinjenog Kraljevstva Velike Britanije
i Sjeverne Irske (izvorno " UK private company limited by guarantee”), i mreZu njegovih Elanova, od kojih je svaki zaseban i samostalan
pravni subjekt. Molimo posjetite www.deloitte.com/hr/o-nama za detaljni opis pravne strukiure Deloitie Touche Tohmatsu Limited i
njegovih tvrtki Elanica.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company at 31 December 2012, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to the fact that the Company has prepared these unconsolidated financial statements
under the Croatian laws and regulations and that the investments in subsidiary have been presented in
these unconsolidated financial statements at cost. In addition, the Company has prepared separate
consolidated financial statements for Viro d.d. and its subsidiaries, dated 01 March 2012. For a better
understanding of the Group as a whole, the consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with these financial statements. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other matters

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 were
audited by another auditor, whose report dated 30 March 2012 expressed unmodified opinion on the
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Deloitte d.o.0.

1 1|
I

Branislav Vrtaénik, Member of the Board, Certified Auditor

Zagreb, Republic of Croatia
1 March 2013




Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

Notes 2012 2011

Sales 6.1 1,070,260 852,277
Other income 52 7,540 5,077
Total operating income 1,077,800 857,354
increase / {decrease) in the value of work in progress and
finished products (20,227) 94,723
Cost of raw material and supplies 7 (594,138) (543,869)
Cost of goods sold 8 (183,457) (137,575}
Other external expenses 9 (40,790) (41.,217)
Depreciation and amortisation 15 (36,803) (34,312}
Staff costs 10 (31,266) (28,965)
Other expenses 111 (8,227) {10,135}
Other operating expenses 1.2 (7,249) (19,746}
Total operating expenses (922,157) (721,096}
Profit from operations 155,643 136,258
Financial income 12 13,554 4,648
Financial expenses 13 (30,593} (18,346)
Net financial loss {17,039) {13,698)
Profit from operations before taxation 138,604 122,560
Income tax 14 - -
Profit for the year 138,604 122,560
Other comprehensive income / )loss)
Change in revaluation reserve for property, plant and
equipment 2,504 3,021
Valuation of financial assets available for sale - (3,867)
Total comprehensive income for the year 141,108 121,714
Earnings per share
- Basic and diluted (in kunas and kpas) 23 99,95 94,14
The accompanying accounting policies and notes [orm an integral parl of these financial statements.

4

Viro tvornica Secera d.d., Virovitica



Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2012

{All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

Notes At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 15 448 531
Property, plant and equipment 15 242167 272,801
Investments in subsidiaries 16 407,207 283,433
Non-current financial assets 17 39,867 34 164
Receivables - 25
Total non-current assets 689,689 590,984
Current assets
Inventories 18 247,106 211,954
Receivables from related companies 19 49 238 23,315
Trade receivables 19 94,943 78,898
Receivables from the State and other institutions 20 68,120 29,021
Current financial assets 21 121,253 64,412
Other receivables 11 184
Cash and cash equivalents 22 4,465 26,674
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 5,047 2,123
Total current assets 590,187 436,581
TOTAL ASSETS 1,279,876 1,027,565

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Viro tvornica $eéera d.d., Virovitica 5



Statement of Financial Position {continued)
At 31 December 2012

(Ali amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

Notes At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Subscribed capital 23 249,600 249,600
Retained earnings 365,131 253,513
Capital reserves 10,368 9,064
Reserves out of profit 56,347 19,389
Revaluation reserves 3,726 874
Total equity 685,172 532,440
Non-current liabilities
Loans payable and borrowings 25 84,726 142,272
Total non-current liabilities 84,726 142,272
Current liabifities
Liabifities to related companies 26, 30 574 9,041
Loans payable and borrowings 25 104,481 70,704
Advances received 27 107,149 154,321
Trade payables 26 273,859 111,464
Other current liabilities 28 20,466 5,468
Accrued expenses and deferred income 29 3,449 1,855
Total current hiabilities 509,978 352,853
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,279,876 1,027,565

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an infegral part of these financial statements.

Viro tvornica Secera d.d., Virovitica 6
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{All amounts are expressed In thousands of kunas)

2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 138,604 122,560
Income tax expense - -
Depreciation and amortisation 36,803 34,312
Foreign exchange differences per loans, net 59 593
Interests expenses 11,506 3,943
interests income {5,173) {1,594)
Net book value of disposed fixed assets 12,833 15,272
Impairment of financial assets available for sale 3,850 -
Value adjustment of trade receivables 1,462 4513
Other non-cash items (147) -
Cperating profit before changes in working capital 199,897 184,599
Increase in inventories (35,152) (32,408)
{Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (43,430) 13,526
{increase) / decrease in other receivables (41,850} 3,694
{Increase) / decrease in advances received {47.172) 153,792
Increase / (decrease) in frade payables 153,928 {37,134}
{Decrease) / increase in other liabilities (1,425) 6,264
(Decrease) / increase in accrued expenses 1,594 {13,355}
Cash generated from operating activities 186,390 278,978
Interests paid (11,839) (12,886)
Dividends paid (11,204) (49,557)
Net cash generated from operating activities 163,574 216,535

Viro tvornica Sedera d.d., Virovitica ]




Statement of Cash Fiows
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

Cash flows from investing activities

Given loans and deposits, net

Purchases of property plant and equipment and intangible assets
Increase of share in Sladorana d.d., net of cash paid

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings and finance leases
Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from finance leases

Disposal / (purchase) of treasury shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

2012 2011
(57,666) (73,308)
(18,772) (45,496)
(105,964) -
(182,402) (118,804)
125,975 145,000
(171 ,481) (256 626)
3,368 18,362
38,261 (28,210)
(3.377) (120,974)
(22,205) (23,243)
26,674 49,817

4,469 26,674

Viro tvornica Secera d.d., Virovitica




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Al amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Introduction

Viro tvornica Sedera d.d., Virovitica, Matije Gupca 254, was entered in the registry of the Commercial Court
in Bjelovar on 23 July 2002. The founders of the company were EOS-Z d.o.0. Zagreb and Robi¢ d.0.0.,
Velika Gorica In 2005 the Company was transformed from a limited liability company into a public limited
company. The Company's share capital amounts to HRK 249,600,060 (2011: HRK 249,600,060) and

consists of 1,386,667 (2010: 1,386,667) ordinary bearer shares, with no par value.

The Company has acquired and holds 3,306,002 (2011:2,532,538) ordinary shares of Sladorana d.d,,

Zupanja, representing 100% (2011: 76.60%) of the equity of the subsidiary.

1.2 Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company comprises production of sugar.

1.3  The Management Board of the Parent
The members of the Company's Management Board are as follows:

1 Zeljko Zadro President of the Management Board

2 lvan Skoric Member of the Management Board

1.4  Supervisory Board
Members of the Supervisory Board of the Parent:

1 Marinko Zadro President of the Supervisory Board

2 Boris Simunovic Deputy President of the Supervisory Board
3 DraZen Robi¢ Member of the Supervisory Board

4 lvan Misetic Member of the Supervisory Board

5 Kredimir Mostovac Member of the Supervisory Board

Viro tvornica 8ecdera d.d., Virovitica




Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

21

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current peiiod

The foliowing amendments to the existing standards issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board and interpretations issued by the international Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee are

effective for the current period:

Amendments to IFRS 1 First ~fime Adoption of IFRS — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011),

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures —Transfer of Financial Assets
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011),

Amendments to 1AS 12 Income fax - Deferred tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets {effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012),

The adoption of the amended and revised Standards and Interpretations has not lead to any changes in the

Company’s accounting policies.

2.2

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yel adopted

At the date of authorization of these financial statements the following Standards, revisions and

interpretations were in issue but not yet effective:

L]

IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments, as amended in 2010, (effective for annual periods beginning
on or affer 1 January 2015},

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, published in May 2011, supersedes the previous
version of IAS 27 (2008) Consolidated and Separafe Financial Statements, (effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, published in May 2011, supersedes IAS 31 Inferests in Joint
Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Eniities, published in May 2011 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013},

Viro tvornica $ecera d.d., Virovitica 11



Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Al amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

2.2

Standards and Interpretations i issue not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, published in May 2011 (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013),

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011}, consolidation requirements
previously forming part of IAS 27 (2008) have been revised and are now contained in IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements, {effective date of 1AS 27 {as amended in 2011} for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013},

1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as amended in 2041). This version
supersedes |AS 28 (2003) invesiments in Asscciates (effective date of |AS 28 {as amended in
2011) for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

Amendments to IFRS 1 First ~time Adoption of IFRS, published in March 2012, amendments
for government loan with a below market rate of interest when transitioning to IFRS, (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures, published in December 2011,
amendments enhancing disclosures about offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) and amendments requiring
disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 8 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2615},

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Revising the way of presenting
the other comprehensive income {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012).

Amendments to IAS 19 Empfoyee Benefits - Improvements to the Accounting for Post-
Employment Benefits {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, published in December 2011, amendments to application guidance on
the offsetting of financial assets and financial instruments (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014},

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine, {effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

Viro tvornica Sedera d.d., Virovitica 12




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All armounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

2.2 Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted (continued}

o Annual improvemenis 2009 — 2011 Cycle, published in May 2012, a collection of
amendments to IFRSs, in response fo issues addressed during the 20082011 cycle, Five
standards (IFRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 32, IAS 34) are primarily affected by the amendments,
with consequential amendments to numerous others {effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2013).

o Transition guidance, published in June 2012, amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12.,
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

« Amendments to investment entities for [FRS 10, IFRS 12, IAS 27 published in October 2012
{effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

The Company has elected not to adopt these Standards, revisions and interpretations in advance of
their effective dates and The Company anticipates that the adoption of these standards, revisions and
interpretations wilt have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of

initial application.

Viro tvornica Secera d.d., Virovitica 13



Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of presentation and preparation of the financial statements

The Company maintains its accounting records in the Croatian language, in Croatian Kuna and in
accordance with Croatian laws and the accounting principles and practices observed by enterprises in
Croatia. The financial statements of the Company are prepared under the cost convention, except for
financial assets available for sale which are carried at fair value, and in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, as published by the international Accounting Standards Board, and

Croatian law.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the going-concern assumption and

accrual basis of accounting.

Estimates are based on the information available as at the date of the financial statements, and actual

results could differ from those estimates.

At 31 December, the exchange rate of Croatian Kuna against the euro (EUR) was as follows:

EUR1 UsD 1
2012 7.545624 5.726794
20M 7.530420 5.568252

The financial statements of the Company represent aggregate amounts of assets, liabilities, capital and
reserves of the Company as of 31 December 2012, and the results of its operations for the year then

ended.

Viro tvarnica $ecera d.d., Virovitica id



Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the fransaction will
flow into the Company and when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are
recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of services, net of taxes and discounts and when the
related risks and benefits have passed onto the buyer. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference o the principai outstanding and at the applicable effective interest rates.

3.3 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of spegcific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the horrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing
costs are included in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unfess the Company has an unconditicnal right to defer
settlemnent of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

3.4 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Croatian kunas at the rates of exchange in effect at
the dates of the transactions. Cash, receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates of exchange in effect at the date of the statement of financial position. Gains
and losses arising on translation are included in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

3.5 Income {ax expense

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the net profit
reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or
deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Viro tvornica 8edera d.d., Virovitica 13



Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)

3.5 Income tax expense (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation
of taxabie profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or a part of the asset to

be recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peried in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by date of the statement of financial position. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the amount that the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settie the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate fo income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority and the Company intends to seftle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferrad taxes for the period

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates 1o items charged or
credited directty to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity, or where it arises from

the initial accounting of a business combination.

Value-added tax (VAT)

The Tax Authorities require that VAT is seftled on a net basis. VAT on sale and purchase transactions is
recognised in the statement of the financial position on a net basis. If a trade debtor is impaired, the related
impairment loss is included in the gross amount of the debtor, which includes VAT.

Viro tvornica Sedera d.d., Virovitica 16



Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets are recognised initially at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost of property,
plant and equipment comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable sales taxes
and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Maintenance and repairs, replacements and improvements of minor importance are expensed as
incurred. Where it is obvious that expenses incurred resulted in increase of expected future economic
benefits to be derived from the use of an item of fangible fixed assets in excess of the originally
assessed standard performance of the asset, they are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Gains
or fosses on the retirement or disposal of tangible fixed assets are recognised as income and expense,
respectively, in the period they occur. Depreciation commences on putting an asset into use.
Depreciation is provided so as to write down the cost or revalued amount of an asset over the estimated
useful life of the asset using the siraight-line method as follows:

Annual rate in

Type of assets Useful life o
Buildings 20 yrs 5%
Vehicles 5yrs 20%
Intangible assets, equipment, vehicles, machinery 4 yrs 25%
Computers, [T equipment, mobile phones and T network equipment 2yrs 50%
Other assets not specified above 10 yrs 10%

In 2012 there were no changes in the depreciation rates versus comparative period.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.7 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable direct labour costs and those overhead costs that have been incurred in bringing
inventories fo their present location and condition.

Where the carrying amount of inventories is o be wiilten down io their net realisable value, an
allowance is recognised and charged fo expenses for the year.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Small inventory includes items of tangible fixed assets with a useful life over one year, but the unit cost
of which is below HRK 3,500 (2011; HRK 3,500).

38 Trade receivables and prepaymenis

Trade debtors and prepayments are carried at nominal amounts less an appropriate allowance for
impairment for uncollectible amounts. Management provides for doubtful recelvables based on a review
of the overall ageing of all receivables and a specific review of significant individual amounts receivable.
An allowance is recognised for amounts doubtful of collection and charged to expenses for the year.

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises account balances with banks, cash in hand, deposits and securities at call or with

maturities of less than three months.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Al amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as & result
of a past event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each date of the statement of financial position and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of discounting is material, the amount of the provision is the
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation, determined using the
estimated risk free interest rate as the discount rate. Where discounting is used, the reversal of such
discounting in each year is recognised as a financial expense and the carrying amount of the provision

increases in each year to reflect the passage of time.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required fo seitle the
present obligation at the date of the statement of financial position, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, ifs carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement wil}
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Company has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement
of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not asscciated with the

ongoing activities of the entity.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11  Contingent liabilities

Contingent labilities have not been recognised in these financial statements, They are not disclosed
unless the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset
is not recognised in the financial statements but it is disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits
becomes probable.

3.12  Events after the reporting period

Evenis after the end of the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s
position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end
events that are not adjusting evenis are disclosed in the notes when material.

3.13 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities included in the accompanying financial statements consist of
cash and cash equivalents, marketable secutities, trade and other receivables, trade and ofher
payables, long-term receivables, loans, borrowings and investments. The details of the recognition and
measurement of those items are presented in the corresponding policies.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs,
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially

measured at fair value.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the

time of initial recognition.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleudating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability,
and of aliocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or, whete appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial instruments {continued)

Loans and recelvables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised
by applying the effective inferest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale investmenis

Investments available for sale comprise of equity shares of up to 20 percent of the share capital or
voting power of the investee. Gains and losses arisen from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
investmentis are recognized directly in equity, until the security is disposed of or determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included in the net

profit or loss for the period.

The fair value represents the market value on a regulated securities market, observed by reference o

the official quotation of the Central Depository Agency, taking info account of the trading volume.

Unlisted equities are recognised at nominal amounts or values estimated by the management on the

basis of abservable public data.

impairment of financial assefs

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each date of the statement of financial
position. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been impacied. For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for ali financial
assets with the exception of loan and {rade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the

alfowance account.
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Notes o the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assefs (continued)

Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. Financial
instruments are classified as assets, liabilittes or equity instruments in accordance with applicable
contracts. Interest, dividends, gains and losses on financial instruments classified as financial liabilities
are recognised as income or expense when they arise. Financial assets and liabilities are offset when
the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the net amounts reported, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire; ot it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor refaing substantially ali the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceads received,
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Al amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED,)

3.15 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncerfainty

in the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described above, the directors are
required to make judgemenis, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assels and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on past experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions fo accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Areas of estimation include, but are not limited fo, depreciation periods and residual values of property,
plant and equipment, and of intangible assets, value adjustment of inventories, impairment of receivables,
provisions for legal actions and provisions made in accordance with actuarial calculations. The key areas of
estimation in applying the Company's accounting policies that had a most significant impact on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements were as follows:

s Useful life of property, plant and equipment

As described in the Note 3.6, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets at the end of each annual reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are recognised inifially at cost, less accumulated depreciation.

= jmpairment allowance on trade receivables

Management provides for doubtful receivables based on a review of the overall ageing of all receivables
and a specific review of significant individual amounts receivable. The allowance for amounts doubtful of

collection is charged to the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

v Consequences of cerfain legal actions

The Parent and its subsidiaries are involved in legal actions and proceedings, which have arisen from the
regular course of their operations. The management makes estimates when the probable outcome of a
legal action has been assessed, and the provisions are recognised on a consistent basis.

3.16 Comparative inforimation

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Al amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

5. SALES AND OTHER INCOWME

5.1 Sales

Foreign sales
Domestic sales

5.2 Other income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Damages collected

Subsequently approved rebates

Material sales

Surplus

Other extraordinary income

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

2012 2011
536,478 325,715
533,782 506,562

1,070,260 852,277

2012 2011

4,437 .

1,263 1,978

963 483
218 817

- 528

659 1,271
7,540 5,077

The operating segments were determined based on the similarity in the nature of individual product groups

Two operating segments were identified: Sugar and Molasses and noodies.

The operating segments are included in internal reports. The internal reports are regutarly reviewed by the

Management Board in order to assess the performance of the segments and to make business decisions.
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

{All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and resulfs

Set out below is a breakdown of revenue and resulls of the Company by its reporiing segments presented

in accordance with IFRS 8. The presented sales comprise sales to third parties.

Sugar
Molasses and noodles

Sugar
Molasses and noodles

Cperating profit
Financtal income
Financial expenses

Profit before tax

Segment revenue

2012, 2011.
801,825 718,638
IS8T 138,716
1,077,800 857,354
Segment expenses Segment profit
2012, 2011. 2012. 2011,
586,035 604,426 115,790 114,212
236,122 116,670 39,853 22,046
922,157 721,086 155,643 136,258
2012. 2011.
155,643 136,258
13,554 4,648
(30,593) - (18,346)
136,604 122,560

The Sugar segment comprises sugar production.
The Molasses and noodles segment comprises production of molasses and noodles.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are identical to those of the Company, which are set

out in Note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of financial
income and expenses, and it is the measure reported to the chief executive officer for the purposes of

resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

6, SEGMENT INFORMATION {CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets
Sugar
Molasses and noodles

Total segmeni assels
Unallocated

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Sugar
Molasses and noodies

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated

Total liabilities

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
529,354 541,083
182,195 104,445
711,549 645,526
568,327 382,039
1,279,876 1,027,565
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
442 428 415,016
182,278 . 80109
594,704 495,125
594,704 495,125

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance, all assets other than non-current and current

financial assats {investments in subsidiaries, long term financial assets and given loans and deposits — see

Notes 16. 17 and 21).

All liabilities are allocated to the segments. Liabilities are ailocated to reportable segments in proportion to

segment asset.
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Al amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION {CONTINUED)

Other segment information

Depieciation and "
amortisation Addifions
2012 2011 2012 2011
Sugar 27,379 28,822 13,965 38,135
Molasses and noodies 9,424 5,490 4,807 7,361
Total 36,803 34,312 18,772 45,496

Geographicat information

The Company operates in three main geographical areas serving as the basis for sales reporting, whereas

all non-current assets are on the Croatian market.
Sales revenue

2012 2011
Croatian market 541,322 531,192
EU market 533,628 272,801
Other 2,850 53,561
Total 1,077,800 857,354

information about major customers

included in the sales in the amount of HRK 1,077,800 thousand (2011: HRK 857 354 thousand) are sales
of HRK 218,456 thousand (2011: MRK 207,324 thousand) generated from the major customer of the

Company.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

7 COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES

Raw material and supplies
Energy

Spare parts

Expensed small tems
Cther material costs

2012 2011
521,022 475,045
63,164 61,220
9,189 7,079
753 521

10 4
594,138 543,869

The cost of raw material and supplies rose significantly in 2012 hecause of a higher volume of raw sugar

processed compared to 2011

8. COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of goods sold in the amount of HRK 183,457 thousand (2011: 137,575 thousand) represent expenses

to the extent of cosis of goods sold, i.e. goods delivered by the Company during the reporting year to

customers.

9. OTHER EXTERNAL CHARGES

2012 2011

Transportation 11,563 4,727
Maintenance 7,543 13,074
Bank and payment operation charges 4,956 7,647
Insurance premiums 4,807 4,600
Rentals and leases 4,142 4,331
Cutsourced service costs 2214 2,279
Intellectual services 2,020 1,590
Municipal utility services and fees 1,139 1,012
Handling costs 895 -
Market research services 170 185
Promotion, advertising and fairs 95 133
Other services 1,446 1,639
40,790 41,217
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

10. STAFF COSTS

Net wages and salaries
Taxes and contributions out of salaries
Contributions on salaries

At 31 December 2012, there were 245 persons employed at the Company {2011: 250 employees).

11. OTHER COSTS AND OPERATING EXPENSES

11.1 Other costs

Jubilee awards and gifts to employees
Transportation {employees)

Mandatory fees, contributions and membership fees
Entertainment

Supervisory board fees

Employee benefits (per diems, accommodation, support)
Retirement / termination benefits

Professional education and literature

Other taxes and fees to the fund

Field-work allowance

Other

2012

18,749
8,260
4257

31,266

2012
1,514
1,342
1,336
1,208
1,049

753
539
132

17

333
8,227

2011

17,587
7,150
4228

28,965

2011
1,541
1,609
2,789
1,206

850
4357
1,254
143
14

53
219

10,135
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

11. OTHER COSTS AND OPERATING EXPENSES

11.2 Other operating expenses

2012 2011
Donations 2,147 1,332
Deficits 2,055 703
Receivables written off 1,462 4513
Impairment of goodwill on acquisition of Slavonija hova d.d. 380 2,194
Subsequently granted discounts 68 1,269
Fines, penalties, damages 14 39
Other 1,123 9,696
7,249 19,746
12.  FINANCIAL INCOME

2012 2011
Foreign exchange gains 8,135 3,054
Interest income - unrelated parties 4429 1,682
Interest income - related parties 744 12
Realised gains on sale of financial assels 55 -
Other financial income 191 -
13,554 4,648

13. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
2012 2011
Foreign exchange losses 14,294 8,815
Interest expense - unrelated companies 11,246 8,654
Impairment of financial assets 3,850 -
Interest expense - related companies 260 289
Other financial expenses 843 588
30,593 18,346

The impairment on financial assts avaifable for sale in the amount of HK 3,950 thousand (2001: nil) relates

to shares purchased in 2008 that were determined to be permanently impaired. The related losses initialy

accumulated in equity were transferred to profit or loss for the year,
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

14. INCOME TAX

The Company is a beneficiary of incentives provided in the Investment Promotion Act (Official Gazetle No.
73/2000) and hence exempt from corporate income tax. The Company possesses the following evidence
for the purposes of the Act: Confirmation of the Ministry of Economy of 5 November 2003 (Class 404-
01/03-01/42; Reg. No. 526-01/03-04) and a Letter from the Ministry of Economy, Labour and
Entrepreneurship of 28 February 2007 {Class 404-01/06-01/63; Reg. No.: 526-07-01/1-07-2).

2012, 2011,

Current tax - -
Deferred tax credit/(deferred tax assets) - -

Income fax recognised in the statement of comprehensive income - -

At 31 December 2012, the Company reported a net profit i.e. profit after tax for the period in the amount of
HRK 109,612 thousand (2011: HRK 27,168 thousand). The reconciliation between the accounting profit

and taxable profits is set out below:

2012, 2011.
Profit hefore taxation 138,604 122 560
Income tax — 20% 27,721 24,512
Non-deductible income and expense items 2,155 3,023
Effect of tax relief (incentives provided in the [nvestment Promotion Act) (29,876) (27,535)

Income tax -

The tax rate applicable to taxable profit in the Republic of Croatia is 20 % (2011 20%).
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011

Stadorana d.d. 407 187 283,433
VIRO — kooperacija d.o.o. 20 -
407,207 283,433

Investments in subsidiaries in the amount of HRK 407,187 thousand (2011; HRK 285,433 thousand)
relates fo an ownership share in Sladorana d.d. The increase of the share in the amount of HRK 123,754
thousand relates fo addifional 23.3957% Sladorana shares purchased in 2012, as a result of which the
Company became the sole owner of Sladorana d.d. (2011 the ownership interest was 76.60%.

In 2012 the Company established a wholly owned subsidiary, VIRO-kooperacija d.o.o., with an initial capital
of HRK 20 thousand (2011: nil}, which was fully paid in.

17. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011

Given deposits, loans and down payments 38,451 32,294
investments in related companies 1,416 1,900
39,867 34,194

Given deposits, loans and down payments in the amount of HRK 38,451 thousand (2011: HRK 32,294
thousand) comprise deposit in Raiffeisenbank in amount of HRK 12,073 thousand (2011: HRK 21,085
thousand), loans to the employees of Sladorana d.d. for purchase of shares in the amount of HRK 240
thousand {2011: HRK 10,820 thousand), given loans to Poljoprivredno poduzeée Orahovica d.d. in the
amoeunt of HRK 13,333 thousand {2011_; HRK nil), Grudska pivovara d.o.c., Grude in the amount of HRK
12,321 thousand (2011: HRK nil} and to Senjanovi¢ Ivan in the amount of HRK 151 thousand (2011: HRK
150 thousnd) and down payments for operating lease arrangements in the amount of HRK 333 thousand
{2011: HRK 589 thousand).

HRK 12,073 thousand (2011: HRK 21,085 thousand) of given foans and deposits represent term deposits
with Raiffeisenbank d.d. made under a cash deposit pledge agreement concluded on 28 October 2008.
The deposit expires on 15 July 2015 and bears interest at a rate of 6.7 percent. The interestrate is variable
and the interest is added to the deposit upon the expiry of the deposit term. .Decrease of deposits in

comparison to the balance as at 31 December 2011 refers to deposit withdrawal as of 4 January 2012 in

the amount of EUR 1,200 thousand.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

18. INVENTORIES

At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011
Finished products 155,104 175,331
Raw material and supplies 72,442 20,392
Prepayments for inventories 12,537 13,362
Merchandise 7,023 2,869
247,106 211,954
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES
At 31 December 2012, tfrade receivables amounted to HRK 144,181 thousand (2011: HRK 102,213

thousand).

The structure of receivables is as follows:
At 31 December At 31 December

2012 201

Domestic frade receivables 61,662 64,735
Receivables from related companies 49 238 23,315
Foreign trade receivables 36,375 17,232
Impairment aliowance on trade receivables (3,094) (3,039}
144,181 102,213

Maturity analysis of receivables not impaired

At 31 DBecember At 31 December

2012 2011
Not yet due 77,408 61,889
0-80 days 53,468 27,723
90-120 days 1,152 4,586
Over 120 days 12,153 8,615
144,181 102,213

Movements in impairment allowance for doubtful accounts
2012 2011
Balance at 1 January 3,039 1,661
New allowances 138 1,394
Recovery of receivables previously provided against {83) {16)
Balance at 31 December 3,094 3,039

Total allowance recognised in the income statement and charged directly to expenses for the period
amounted fo MRK 1,462 thousand (2011: HRK 4,513 thousand; Note 11.2). All receivables provided

against were past due beyond 120 days.
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20. RECEIVABLES FROM THE STATE AND OTHER INSTITUTIONS

At 31 December At 31 December

VAT receivable
Other amounts due from the state

2012 2011
68,056 28,948
64 73
68,120 29,021

21. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011
Given loans and deposits 79,994 23,126
Investments in securities - received bills of exchange 21,552 39,779
Loans to related companies 11,782 1,507
Given deposits 7,925 -
121,253 64,412
An overview of given loans at 31 December 2012 is provided in the table below:
Interest Balance at  Balance at
Legal persons rate 311272012 31/12/2012
Konzum d.d. 7% 70,000 -
Dubrovaéki podrumi d.d. 6% 2487 2,023
Volenes d.o.o0. 8% 1,503 2,023
Visus d.0.0. 8% 1,141 763
Agrokontrola d.c.0. 6% - 4,183
Hospitalija d.o.o. 6% - 4,105
Autoprijevoznik Romié Robert 8% - 2,000
Others 6%-9% 1,578 5,916
Total 76,709 19,990
Individuals
Others 6%-8% 3,285 3,136
Total individuals 3,285 3,136
Total 79,994 23,126
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011
Foreign currency account batance 2,786 6,343
Gyro account balance 1,683 20,331
4,469 26,674

23. SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2012 the share capital amounts to HRK 249,600 thousand and consists of
1,386,667shares (2011: HRK 249,660 thousand, consisting of 1,386,667 shares).

The ownership structure of the Company is sel out below:

Number of shares Ownership in %
2012 2011 2012 2011
EOS-Z do.w. 466,500 465 483 33.64% 33.57%
Robié d.o.o. 416,100 416,100 30.01% 20.01%
Zadro Marinko 127,936 34,417 9.23% 2.48%
Societe Generale Splitska 0 0
banka d.d. / AZ OMF 117,069 88,811 8.44% 6.40%
Hypo Alpe Adria Bank d.d. / o o
PBZ Croatia Osiguranje OMF 42,181 42,181 3.04% 3.04%
Viro tvornica Secera d.d. - 84,836 - 6.12%
Other 216,881 254 839 15.64% 18.38%
1,386,667 1,386,667 100.00 100.00
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24. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are determined, by dividing the Company’s net profit by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding the average number of ordinary shares

redeemed and held by the Company as treasury shares.

2012 2011
Net profit attributable to the shareholders (in HRK'000) 138,604 122 560
Weighted average number of shares 1,386,667 1.30%.831
Basic earnings per share (in kunas and lipas): 99 95 94.14

Diluted earnings per share are equal to basic earnings per share, as there is no hasis for adjusting the

weighted average nusnber of ordinary shares.
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25. LIABILITIES UNDER BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL LEASES

At 31 December

2012
Long-term borrowings
Bank borrowings 65,540
Financial lease obligations 19,186
84,726
Short-term bofrowings
Banks - current portion of long term loans {due within 1 year) 59.805
Banks 20.000
Finance lease 17.810
Finance lease — current portion of long term finance lease {due
within 1 year) 6.866
104,481
189,207

[l

At 31 December

2011

125,287
16,985

142,272

85.606

5.189

RS

70,704

e aiuns ]

212,976

s T——GCETTEO—

Bank borrowings in the amount of HRK 489,207 thousand (2011: HRIK 212,976 thousand) are secured by

pledge over the property and movahles of the Company.

Einancial loan in the amount of HRK 17,810 thousand (2011: HRK nil) relates to the liability towards the

employees of Sladorana d.d. who sold their shares to the Company in two installments. The first instaliment

was paid at 31 May 2012, while the second one is due on 1 June 2013.

2012
Balance at 1 January 190,792
New loans raised 125,975
Amounts repaid (171,48%)
Exchange differences 8
Balance at 31 December 145,345

2011

303,729
145,000
(258,530)
593

190,792
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25. LIABILITIES UNDER BORROWINGS AND EINANCIAL LEASES {continued)

An overview of bank borrowings (maturities, interest rates, balances and currencies) is provided below

Creditor

Long-term
Privredna banka d.d.
Raiffeisenbank d.d.
Raiffeisenbank d.d.

Shori-term
Slatinska banka d.d.

Total short term and long term loans

Ultimate
repayment
date

32204

31112/2014
30/06/2015

31/01/2013

Present value of minimum lease payments per financial leases

Not later than 1 year
Payable from two to five years
Payable after five years

Less: future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease
payments

Viro tvorni

Minimum lease

Interest rate

5.40%+ 2.80%
5.40%+2.80%

4.00%

4.6%

Finance charges

Currency

HRK
HRK
EUR

HRK

Balance at
23171212012

50,600
46 667
28,678

Present value of

paymenis minimum lease
payments
_,221_?-..#.__H.&',LdM_EQL'%._MJﬂL_w}PJ_L.__M 2011
6,866 5,199 859 720 6,007 4 479
19,186 15,465 1,241 1,278 17,945 14,187
I - U 1,515
26,0562 22,184 2,100 2,003 23,952 20,181
 (200) (2008
23,962 20,181 - - 23952 20,181
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(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

26. TRADE PAYABLES

At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011

Domestic trade payables 89,316 77,111
Foreign trade payables 184,543 34,353
273,859 111,464

27. ADVANCES RECEIVED

At 31 December 2012, advances received amounted 1o HRK 107,149 thousand (2011 HRK 154,321

thousand) and comprise amounts advanced by foreign entities for purchases of sugar.

28, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December At 31 December

2012 2011

Liabilities for dividends 16,556 12
Amounts due fo employees 1,743 1,898
Taxes, contributions and similar duties payable 1,135 1,906
Other current liabilities 1,032 1,852
20,466 5,468

On 27 December 2012 the Company's Assembly adopted a decision to pay dividends in the amount of
HRK 20.00 per share out of the retained earnings. The total dividend to be distributed amounted to HRK
27,733 thousand, of which HRK 14,177 thousand was paid on 21 December, and the difference of HRK
16,556 thousand was paid untit 26 January 2013.
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(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

29, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

Accrued direct sugar beats costs
Accrued water protection fee
Accrued sugar beet incentives
Other accrued expenses

30. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At 31 At 31
December December
2012 2011
3,294 1,652

78 37

- 29

77 137

3,449 1,855

Balances and transactions between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below.

Trading transactions

Transactions entered into by and between the Company and #ts related parties during the year are as

follows:

Operating income

Sales Other income
2012 2011 2012 2011
SLADORANA d.d. 167,208 153,384 16,458 520
VIRO-KOOPERACIIA d.o.0. 7,863 - 63 -
ECS-Zd.o.0. 7,660 22,082 - 493
ROBIC d.o.0. 257 25,786 - 8
SLAVONIJA NOVA d.d. - 2,696 - -
183,686 203,948 16,521 1,021
Operating expenses

Seliing expenses Other expenses
2012 2011 2012 2011
SLADORANA d.d. 158,224 137,382 12,649 463
VIRO-KOOPERACIJA d.o.0. 7,029 - 83 -
EOQS-Zd.o.o. 7,645 22,045 - 450
ROBIC d.o.0. 220 23,806 - 55
SLLAVONIJA NOVA d.d. - 2,817 - -
173,118 186,050 12,712 968
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30. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS {CONTINUED)
Financial income and expenses

Financial income

Financial expenses

2012 2011 2012 2011

SLADORANA d.d. &1 - - 289
SEAVONIJA NOVA d.d. 587 7 - -
VIRO-KOOPERACHJA d.0.0. 66 - -
EQS-Zd.o.0. - - 260 -
ROBIC d.o.0. - 5 ; .
744 12 260 289

Outstanding balances from frading transactions at the end of the reporting period:

Amounts owed hy related

companies

2012 2011

SLADORANA d.d. 37,411 -
VIRO-KOOPERACIJA d.o.0. 8,454 -
SLAVONIJA NOVA d.d. 2,570 2,709
ROBIC d.o.0. 803 12,534
EGS-Z d.o.o. - 8,072
49,238 23,315

Loans to related parties:

Loan receivables

2012 2011

SLAVONIJA NOVA d.d. 8,716 1,507
VIRO-KOOPERACIJA d.o.0. 3,066 -
11,782 1,507

Remuneration paid to key management personnel:

Salaries
Other

Amounts owed to related parties

2012

574

574

Borrowings
2012

2012

1,771
970

2,741

2011
8,775

266

9,041

2011

2011

1,030
820

1,850
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital risk management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern, while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Company's overall strategy has remained unchanged since 2011.

The Company's capital consists of debt, which includes borrowings disclosed in Note 24, less cash and
cash equivalents and balances with banks (the so-called net debt), and equity, which comprises share

capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Treasury of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company. As part of this review, the
Treasury considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio

at the reporting date was as follows:

Gearing ratio

2012 2011
Debt (i) 189,207 212,976
Cash and cash equivalents {4.469) {26,674)
Net debt 184,738 186,302
Equity (i) 685,172 532,440
Net debt-to-equity ratio (in %) 26,96 34,99
() Debt consists of iong- and short-term borrowings, as described in Note 25.
(i) Equity consists of share capital, retained earnings, profit for the year and reserves managed by the

Company as capital.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Non-current financial assets
Non-current receivables

Receivables from related companies
Trade receivables

Current financial assets

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Prepaid expenses and accrued income

Financial liabilities
Loans payable and borrowings
Liahilities to related companies

Borrowings and financial lease obligations

Advances received

Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Accrued expenses and deferred income

2012 2011
447,074 317,627
- 25
49,238 23,315
94,943 76,898
121,253 64,412
iRl 184
4,469 26,674
5,047 2123
722,035 513,258
84,726 142,272
574 9,041
104,481 70,704
107,149 154,321
273,859 111,464
19,331 3,562
3,449 1,855
593,569 493,219

At the reporting date there are no significant concentrations of credit risk for loans and receivables
designated at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income. The carrying amount reflected

above represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such loans and receivables.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives

The Treasury function of the Company provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic
and internationat financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of
the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.

These risks include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit

risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks. The Company does not enter into, or trade in
financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes. The Treasury
function periodically reports to the Company’'s management on the risk exposures.

Market risk

The Companys activities expose it primarily o the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange

rates and interest rates, as disclosed below.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to

exchange rate fluctuations arise.
The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at

the reporting date are provided in the table below:

Liabilities Assets
2012 2011 2012 2011
European Union (EUR} 347 522 246,896 67,999 47,922
ush - - 4038 3,855
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to the fluctuations in the exchange rate of the Croatian kuna against the
euro and the US dollar because these are the currencies in which the majority of sugar sales (EUR) and

purchases of raw sugar (USD) on international markets are carried out.

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10 % decrease of the Croatian kuna against the
relevant currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to the
Management Board and represents the Board's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their {ranslation at the year end for the 10-percent change in the relevant foreign
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes external borrowings, as well as loans to foreign operations
of the Company denominated in a currency that is not the currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the Croatian kuna strengthens 10
percent against the relevant currency. For a 10-percent weakening of the Croatian kuna against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profil, and the baiances below

would be negative,

EUR impact USD impact
2012 2011 2012 2011
Profit or loss 27,952 19,897 403 385

The exposure to the 10-percent change for the relevant currencies is mainly related to the balance of
borrowings, trade payables and receivables from related companies denominated in euro (EUR) and the

halance of trade payables denominated in US dollars (USD).

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Company borrow funds at both fixed
and fioating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix
between fixed and fioating rate borrowings. The Company’s exposures to interest rates on its financial

assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the fiquidity risk management section of this note.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk management

interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higherflower and all other variables were heid constant, the

Company's:

profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 would decreasefincrease by HRK 575 thousand (2011:
decreasefincrease by HRK 447 thousand). This is mainly atiributable to the Company's exposure to interest

rates on ifs variable rate borrowings.

The Company's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current year mainly due to the

reduction in variable rate debt instruments.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED}

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counter parties and
obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
default. The exposure of the Company and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored, and the total value of transactions entered into is spread across accepted customers. Credit

exposure is managed by setting limits to customers.

Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where

appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is purchased.

The Company has no significant credit risk exposures, either to a single customer, or a group of customers

with similar characteristics.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The Company commonly accepts bank guarantees, debentures and bilis of exchange of its customers.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liguidity risk management

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient levels of cash, obtaining adequate funding
using credit lines and faciliies and the ability fo settle the liabilities on a timely basis. It also involves
matching the maturities of fiabilities and maintaining appropriate levels of liquid assets. Ultimate
responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Management Board. The Company manages its
liquidity by continusously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and maiching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities. The cash flow forecasts are prepared on a monthly basis (by day) and

departures are monitored daily.

Liquidity and interest rate risk tables

The following tables detfail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both principal
and interest cash flows. The discounted cash outflow on interest at variable rates has been derived from
interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity has been defined as the
earliest date on which the Company can be required o pay.

Weighted
average Upto 1 1t03 3 months 1t05 Total
effective month months  to 1 year years
interest rate
2012
Non-interest bearing liabilities - 120,543 5980 276,839 - 404,362
Interest bearing liabilities 21,549 14,092 73,839 87,929 197,409
4.17% 142,092 21,072 350,678 87,929 601,771
2011
Non-interest bearing liabilities ~ 265,201 15,042 - - 280,243
Interest bearing liabilities 5% - 13,870 64792 157,783 236,445

265,201 28,912 64,792 157,783 516,688
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

Liguidity risk management {continued)

The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial assets based on

the eartiest date on which the Company can require payment.

Weighted Upto 1 1103 3 months 1105 Total
average month months  to 1 year years
effective
interest rate
2012
Non-interest bearing assets - 116,197 19,387 42 573 408,956 587,113
Interest bearing assets 6,69% 2,643 280 98,064 41,018 142,005
118,840 19,667 140,637 449,974 729,418
2011
Non-interest bearing assels - 93,676 66,301 12,504 206566 469,047
Interest bearing assets 6.56% 130 260 41,048 4728 46,166
93,806 66,561 53,552 301,294 515,213

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fajr value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded

on active liquid markets is determined with reference to quoted market prices;

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing medels based on discounted cash flow

analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar

instruments;

At 31 December 2012, the carrying amounts of cash, short-term deposits, receivables and short-term

liabilities, accrued expenses and other financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-

term maturity of these financial instruments.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued}

Fair value measurements recognised in the stafement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

cbservable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or labilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that is not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

At 31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(HRK'000)

Financial assets available for sale 1,050 1,418 - 2,466

Total 1,050 1,416 - 2,466

At 31 December 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(HRK'0G0)

Financial assels available for sale 1,400 1,801 - 3,301

Total 1,400 1,901 - 3,301
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

Increase of investment in Sladorana d.d.

During 2012, the Company increased the investment in the subsidiary Sladorana d.d. for a few times up 1o

the final 100% share. In the table below there is presented increase of share chronologically:

Paid amount in

Date Number of shares HRK 060 % of ownership
31.03.2012, 86,891 9,645 79.232529
16.05.2012. 521,449 87,690 95.005327
04.06.2012. 2,000 320 95.065823
29.06.2012. 153 24 95.070451
10.12.2012. 162,971 26,075 160.000009
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33. OPERATING LEASES

The Company as lessee

Operating lease agreeimenis

Operating lease agreements comprise leases of personal cars over a term of five years. The Company has

no option to purchase the leased assets upon the expiry of the lease term.

Lease payments recognised as an expense

2012 2011

Minimum lease payments 537 416
Non-cancellable operating lease commitmenis

2012 2011

MNot later than 1 year 387 533

1-5 years 916 1,300

1,303 1,833

34. MANAGEMENT AUTHORISATION OF THE ISSUE OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These financial statements were adopted by the Management Board and authorized for issue on 1 March
2013.

Signed on behalf of the Management Board on 1 March 2013 by:

Zeljko Zadro
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